AGREEMENT

Between

THE GREATER LAWRENCE REGIONAL TECHNICAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT COMMITTEE

And

THE GREATER LAWRENCE REGIONAL TEACHERS FEDERATION LOCAL 1707, AMERICAN FEDERATION OF TEACHERS (AFT) AFT MASSACHUSETTS, AFL-CIO

July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
ARTICLE 1 - Recognition	1
ARTICLE 2 - Administration of the School District	1
ARTICLE 3 - Collective Bargaining Procedure	1
ARTICLE 4 - Method and Time of Salary Payment Compensation	2
ARTICLE 5 - Professional Development	3
ARTICLE 6 - Payroll Statement	5
ARTICLE 7 - Travel	5
ARTICLE 8 - Substitute Teachers	6
ARTICLE 9 - Hourly Rates of Pay	6
ARTICLE 10 - Lead Teachers	6
ARTICLE 11 - Credits	7
ARTICLE 12 - Intentionally Omitted	8
ARTICLE 13 - Health and Group Life Insurance	8
ARTICLE 14 - Tax Sheltered Accounts/Annuities	9
ARTICLE 15 - Worker's Compensation	10
ARTICLE 16 - Working Conditions and School Facilities	10
ARTICLE 17 - Length of School Year & School Day	11
ARTICLE 18 - Notices and Announcements	12
ARTICLE 19 - Teacher Programs	13
ARTICLE 20 - Conferences	13
ARTICLE 21 - Visiting Other Schools	13
ARTICLE 22 - Curriculum Standards	13
ARTICLE 23 - Teaching Schedules	14
ARTICLE 24 - Professional Standards	14
ARTICLE 25 - Teacher Evaluation	15
ARTICLE 26 - Personnel Practices	15
ARTICLE 27 - Teaching Load	16
ARTICLE 28 - Lunch Period	17
ARTICLE 29 - Career Area Instructors' Break	18
ARTICLE 30 - Summer School and Evening School	18
ARTICLE 31 - Seniority/Program Reduction	19
ARTICLE 32 - Peer Mentoring	20
ARTICLE 33 - Sick Leave and Redemption of Sick Leave	20
ARTICLE 34 - Personal Leave	21
ARTICLE 35 - Absence Due to Death in Immediate Family	22
ARTICLE 36 - Death of Retired Faculty Members	22
ARTICLE 37 - Military Leave	22
ARTICLE 38 - Organized Reserve Forces	22
ARTICLE 39 - Sabbatical Leaves of Absence	23

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
ARTICLE 40 - Maternity Leaves of Absence	23
ARTICLE 41 - Federation Leave	24
ARTICLE 42 - Sick Leave Buy Back Plan	24
ARTICLE 43 - Sick Bank	25
ARTICLE 44 - Application for Promotion	26
ARTICLE 45 - Grievance Procedure	26
ARTICLE 46 - Payroll Deduction of Union Dues	28
ARTICLE 47 - Distribution of Materials	29
ARTICLE 48 - School Meetings	29
ARTICLE 49 - Information	29
ARTICLE 50 - Grievance Time for Union Building Representative	30
ARTICLE 51 - Job Descriptions	30
ARTICLE 52 - Teacher Conduct	30
ARTICLE 53 - Unauthorized Interruptions of School Operations	30
ARTICLE 54 - Federal and State Laws	31
ARTICLE 55 - Procedure in Assault Cases	31
ARTICLE 56 - No Union Activity on School Time	32
ARTICLE 57 - Discriminatioin and Coercion	32
ARTICLE 58 - Damage and Loss of Property	32
ARTICLE 59 - Agency Fee	33
ARTICLE 60 - Family Medical Leave Act	33
ARTICLE 61 - Qualifications Memorandum	34
ARTICLE 62 - Recognition Memorandum	35
ARTICLE 63 - Physician's Statement Memorandum	35
ARTICLE 64 - Professional Service Award Memorandum	35
ARTICLE 65 - Jury Duty/Court Appearances	36
ARTICLE 66 - Settlement Agreement	37
ARTICLE 67 - Coaches Salaries	37
ARTICLE 68 - Printing	37
ARTICLE 69 - Duration	38
SIGNATURE PAGE	38
APPENDIX A - Teacher/Nurses Salaries	39
APPENDIX B - Coaches and Advisor's Salaries	42
APPENDIX C - Application for Membership	44
APPENDIX D - Application for Agency Service Fee	45
APPENDIX E - Lead Teacher - Job Desctiption	46
APPENDIX F - Educator Evaluation System	48
APPENDIX G - Educator Evaluation System Forms	80
APPENDIX H - ESE Model Rubric for Teachers	102
APPENDIX I - ESE Model Rubric for SISP	119
APPENDIX J - Setting SMART Goals	137
APPENDIX K - District Determined Measures	140

ARTICLE 1 RECOGNITION

The Greater Lawrence Regional Technical High School District Committee recognizes the Regional Teachers' Federation, Local 1707, American Federation of Teachers, AFL-CIO as the exclusive bargaining representative for all classroom teachers, career area instructors, department lead teachers, school nurses, librarians, and guidance counselors working 20 (twenty) or more hours per week.

ARTICLE 2 ADMINISTRATION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

The right to administer the affairs of the Regional School District, subject to the limitations of this agreement, is exclusively vested in, and retained by, the Greater Lawrence Regional High School District Committee.

ARTICLE 3 COLLECTIVE BARGAINING PROCEDURE

- 1. Collective bargaining shall be conducted by the duly authorized bargaining representatives of the School Committee and the Teachers' Federation. Each party to such bargaining shall notify the other in writing of the names of its representatives and of any changes which may occur.
- Meetings for the purpose of collective bargaining shall be held at mutually convenient times and places on request of either of the parties to such bargaining.
- 3. Definitions:

CAMPUS: Any site or location of the facilities or properties of the Greater Lawrence Regional Vocational Technical High School.

COMMITTEE: Greater Lawrence Regional Technical High School District Committee.

PARTIES: Local 1707, American Federation of Teachers and the Greater Lawrence Regional Technical High School District Committee as participants in this Agreement.

SCHOOL: Any work location or functional division maintained by the School District Committee. SUPERINTENDENT/DIRECTOR: The responsible administrative head of the Regional School District.

FEDERATION: Local 1707, American Federation of Teachers.

FEDERATION REPRESENTATIVE: Any qualified designee of the Federation.

4. Whenever one gender is used in this Agreement, it shall be deemed to include any other gender wherever the context so requires; and wherever the context so requires, the singular shall be deemed to include the plural thereof.

ARTICLE 4 METHOD AND TIME OF SALARY PAYMENT COMPENSATION

- 1. All employees covered hereunder shall have the option of being paid in twenty-two (22) installments. If this option is not exercised, payments will be made in twenty-six (26) installments. Written notice of the exercise of said option must be given to the Superintendent/Director by June 1st of the year proceeding. For those employees being paid in either 22 or 26 installments, there shall be a minimum of two (2) paychecks per months starting in September, during the school year. In the last payment in June a lump sum payment consisting of the balance due will be made to employees who have selected the 26 installment option. A schedule of the bi-weekly pay days will be furnished each employee covered by this Agreement.
- 2. A days pay shall be computed at 1/183rd of a teachers salary.
- 3. All weeks during which school is in session shall be considered as containing five (5) days each, notwithstanding holidays or no-school days.
- 4. If a teacher leaves or dies during the school year, he/she or his/her estate shall be entitled to a pro-rated share based on his period of service in relation to the number of days school is in session during the school year, minus compensation already paid.
- 5. It is agreed that all members of Local 1707 hired on or before June 30, 2008 have been appropriately placed on the

salary schedule attached hereto as Appendix A. Except for members on Step 13 all members of 1707 who were on the payroll as of June 30 of a given year and had been on said payroll prior to February 1 of said year shall move down one step on the vertical scale each succeeding year of the contract.

- 6. All members of 1707 have been placed on the horizontal scale in the appropriate column. Said placement is final. Each member will move across on the horizontal scale if, as and when he or she meets the education requirement for the applicable column in the schedule. Each member of 1707 desiring to move on the horizontal scale must present the Superintendent/Director with appropriate documentation on or before September 1, in order to receive remuneration for the entire year, or on or before February 1, in order to receive remuneration for one-half of the year.
- 7. All members of 1707 hired after the execution date of this contract shall be placed on the salary schedule in an existing step and column commensurate with his or her academic or vocational qualifications. In any event, said placement will not affect any other member's placement.
- 8. The parties to this Agreement have placed the nurses in the bargaining unit hired on or before June 30, 2008 on the Schedule attached hereto as Appendix B. Movement and placement on the schedule, both horizontally and vertically, will be as set out in paragraphs 4 and 5 above.

ARTICLE 5 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

- 1. All academic teachers will fulfill the certification and licensing requirements outlined in the Educational Reform Act of 1993, as amended from time to time and in accordance with Massachusetts Department of Elementary & Secondary Education regulations. Vocational teachers will maintain certification/licensing approval as outlined in Chapter 74 of the Massachusetts General Laws.
- 2. The aforementioned certification/licensing requirements for the academic teachers will be met by the offering of a five (5) day course at the school or 30 hours of professional development at the school, both at no cost to the teacher.

- 3. Any teacher seeking reimbursement for the taking of any training program or college course must obtain the prior approval of the Superintendent/Director or his or her designee. In making his or her decision, the Superintendent/Director will review the applicability of the program or course to the teacher's area of specialty at the School and its potential benefit to the School and its students. Further, in making a program or course selection, the teacher is encouraged to see that a given program or course is consistent with the teacher's Individual Professional Development Plan, the District's School Improvement Plan and Strategic Plan and the Massachusetts Department of Elementary & Secondary Education Curriculum Frameworks.
- 4. Teachers will be limited to three (3) training programs or courses in a given fiscal year. It is further agreed that the School will set aside \$40,000 for this purpose. At the end of a school year, the School, upon request, will report the status of expenditures under this Article to 1707.
- 5. If approved, in the case of college courses, the amount of reimbursement shall be limited to the cost of the same or the most similar course offered in the State University system. In the case of a training program, the amount of reimbursement shall not exceed the cost for the course in the State university system. In any event, in the case of a college course, reimbursement shall always be conditioned on the teacher receiving a grade of at least 2.7 B or higher. In the case of a training program or a pass/fail college course, reimbursement shall be conditioned on a certificate of satisfactory completion of the training program or pass/fail course.
- funded by the school are expected to share best practices collegially. Starting with the 2017-2018 school year there shall be up to four (4) weeks of professional development implementation training during the summer months for any teacher hired into the STEAM Program. In addition, returning teachers in the STEAM Program shall be required, as part of his/her commitment to teaching in the program, to attend up to two (2) weeks of professional development per year during the summer months. A teacher attending professional development during the summer months related to the STEAM Program shall be compensated at his/her per diem (daily) rate of pay.

- No later than January 1st of each year the District shall provide the Federation with a list of the scheduled dates for professional development during the summer months for teachers in the STEAM Program.
- 7. Newly hired non-professional status teachers for school year 2011-2012 and beyond shall enroll and participate in the Skillful Teacher course once during their first three years at the school's expense. Newly hired teachers who have taken the course in another school district within the past three years and can provide documentation shall be exempted from taking the course.

ARTICLE 6 PAYROLL STATEMENT

Every two weeks an itemized payroll deduction statement will be enclosed in an envelope available to all teaching personnel, showing gross earnings, itemized deductions, total of deductions, and net earnings. The School and the Union agree that teachers 'summer checks' shall be dated and mailed June 30th of each respective year. So long as state funding (Chapter 70 funds) are received in a timely manner, effective with the start of the 2014-2015 school year and no later than June 30th, the Committee shall deposit summer pay checks directly into the designated bank account of any teacher who participates in Direct Deposit, otherwise teachers shall receive their summer pay checks on the last day of school.

ARTICLE 7

Personnel who are covered by this Agreement and who are authorized by the Superintendent/Director or his or her designee to use private automobiles for school business shall be reimbursed at a rate equal to the Internal Revenue Service standard mileage rate. Said personnel shall provide the Superintendent/Director or his or her designee with documentation of said use.

ARTICLE 8 SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS

The School Administration shall try to provide substitute coverage at all times where needed. In addition, when it is clear that a unit member is not returning to their position then, in that event, and upon proper notification, the School agrees to commence a search in a timely manner and to make a good faith effort to replace the unit member with a certified or certifiable, competent and qualified full-time replacement.

ARTICLE 9 HOURLY RATES OF PAY

- 1. A minimum fee of \$32.00 per hour will be paid to those teaching regular summer school and/or evening school, effective July 1, 2012. This rate shall increase to \$34.00 per hour on July 1, 2015, and again to \$35.00 on July 1, 2016.
- 2. The foregoing rates apply only to teaching duties and educational activities that pertain to teaching.
- 3. The above listed minimum fees shall apply to all employees including those employees in federally funded positions.

NOTE: Should night school be canceled for emergency reasons after school has started, the instructor will be paid two (2) hours pay. Should an instructor elect to remain at school over two (2) hours on such an instance, he will be paid for that whole evening session.

ARTICLE 10 LEAD TEACHERS

1. The School Committee, in consultation with the Superintendent and Principal, shall determine the number of Lead Teachers required and will appoint them in September of each year. Lead Teachers start time shall be 7:30, shall work 183 days and be compensated as follows for each member of the faculty assigned to that particular department, excluding the Lead Teacher: For school year 2013-2014: \$1,700.00 and \$250.00 per department member.

- 2. Lead Teachers may be relieved of that position by the Principal once the school year commences only for just cause.
- 3. Whenever desirable, Lead Teachers shall make written recommendations to the Superintendent/Director or Principal regarding teaching assignments or teaching loads. In order to assist Lead Teachers with the duties of their position, the Superintendent/Director or Principal shall make a good faith effort to limit department Lead Teachers' schedules to four periods of teaching or other duties each day and to exempt them from teaching or other duties during the first period each day in order that the Lead Teachers may better perform their duties associated with their departments.
- 4. A Lead Teacher in the English Language Learner (ELL)
 Department shall work an additional five (5) days at the
 beginning and end of each school year. A Lead Teacher who
 works additional days beyond the contractual school year
 (currently 183 days) shall be compensated for these
 additional days at the applicable per diem (daily) rate.

ARTICLE 11 CREDITS

The following requirements will apply to the earnings of educational credits:

- 1. Carrying in excess of eight (8) credits at any one time during the school year will not be permitted.
- 2. College credits must be earned at an accredited institution.
- 3. Trade or vocational experience credits must bear validation through attested written forms, describing the new or different knowledge and experience gained.
- 4. The School Administration may credit unusual or highly specialized areas up to ten (10) credits for each year of such experience.
- 5. Subject to the prior approval of the Superintendent/Director, any employee obtaining any new licensure or certification can earn an appropriate number of credits. In examining all approval requests, the Superintendent/Director shall review the applicability of

the certification or licensure to the employee's area of specialty at the school and its benefit to the school and its students.

ARTICLE 12

[INTENTIONALLY OMITTED]

ARTICLE 13 HEALTH AND GROUP LIFE INSURANCE

1. Effective September 1, 2014, the School Committee will provide 80% of the premium cost of the present Blue Cross/Blue Shield HMO Network Blue New England plan. The School will contribute a dollar amount to Master Medical enrollees equal to the current cost of the individual and family plans respectively. Plan design for the Network Blue New England plan shall be as follows:

COVERED SERVICES	YOUR COST
Outpatient Care	
Emergency Room Visits	\$25 per visit
Mental Health and Substance Abuse Teatment	\$10 per visit
Office Visits	\$10 per visit
Chiropractor Services	\$10 per visit
Short-Term Rehabilitation Therapy - Physical and Occupational (Up to 60 visits per calendar year).	\$10 per visit
Speech, Hearing, and Language Disorder Teatment - Speech Therapy	\$10 per visit
Durable Medical Equipment - such as Wheelchairs, Crutches, Hospital Beds (up to \$1,500 per calendar year).	All charges beyond the calendar-year benefit

Inpatient Care	
General or Chronic Disease Hopital Care (as many days as medically necessary).	Nothing
Mental Hospital r Substance Abuse Facility Care (as many days as medically necessary).	Nothing
Rehabilitation Hospital Care (up to 60 days per calendar year).	Nothing
Skilled Nursing Facility are (up to 100 days per calendar year).	Nothing
Prescription Drug Benefits	
All designated Retail Pharmacies. (Up to a 30-day formulary supply for each prescription or refill).	\$10 for Tier 1 \$20 for Teir 2 \$35 for Teir 3
Through the designated Mail Service Pharmacy. (Up to a 90-day supply for each prescription or refill).	\$10 for Tier 1 \$20 for Teir 2 \$35 for Teir 3

- 2. The School District shall provide 99% of the premium cost of a life insurance policy in the amount of \$20,000 for each employee covered by this Agreement. In addition, each employee will have the option of purchasing additional insurance through payroll deduction with the adoption of Section 11A of the General Laws of Massachusetts.
- 3. The School District will maintain the current employee-funded Section 125 plans relating to pre-tax health and dental coverage.
- 4. The parties agree that there shall be no change in premium contribution (premium split) or plan design (co-payments and out-of-pocket expenses) for the current Network Blue New England plan for the duration of this agreement.

TAX SHELTERED ACCOUNTS/ANNUITIES

The School District Committee agrees that it is desirable to allow teachers to take advantage of the federal law concerning tax sheltered accounts/annuities and shall take such steps as necessary to implement a tax sheltered account/annuity program as long as there is no cost to the School District Committee. Changes in an account/annuity program will be processed within a thirty day period from receipt of all required documentation.

ARTICLE 15 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

- 1. The School District Committee will continue to provide Worker's Compensation for employees covered by this agreement.
- 2. The School District Committee will compensate employees on Worker's Compensation an amount equal to the difference between the Worker's Compensation rate and his or her gross salary for a period of up to sixty (60) days. Sick leave as set forth in Article 33 shall not be utilized during this period.

ARTICLE 16 WORKING CONDITIONS SCHOOL FACILITIES

- 1. With regard to both existing and future buildings and facilities, the School District Committee agrees to make a good faith effort to take steps to provide the following:
 - A. Parking Facilities.
 - B. Storage space in each classroom.
 - C. An adequately equipped workroom to be used by teachers in preparing instructional materials.
 - D. An appropriately furnished room to be used as a faculty lounge.
 - E. Well-lighted and clean teachers' rest room.
 - F. Mailbox for each teacher.
 - G. Consultation rooms for testing purposes and teacher/parent interviews.
 - H. Bulletin boards for general building use.
 - I. Bulletin boards for the exclusive use of the Union for purposes of posting material dealing with proper and legitimate union business.
 - J. Properly heated and ventilated classrooms with temperatures maintained between a high of 70 degrees to 72 degrees and low of 66 degrees to 68 degrees.

ARTICLE 17 LENGTH OF SCHOOL YEAR & SCHOOL DAY

- 1. Effective August 2011, the members of 1707 will report to School at 7:40 a.m. on the Tuesday preceding the Labor Day holiday and shall remain until 2:55 p.m. Said days shall be paid work days. It is agreed that these days will be spent on educational matters such as updates and changes in policy, scheduling and curriculum; explanations of education reform mandates; and other issues which will affect the School and the members of Local 1707. During these days, time will also be dedicated to allow 1707 members to clean and organize their classrooms and shops. The School agrees that it will make a good faith effort to ensure that all speaking programs meet the intentions of the parties in creating these work days and will focus on the issues mentioned above. The regular school year will commence on the Tuesday following Labor Day and will continue until all State attendance requirements are met. It is agreed that, if State attendance requirements are changed, the parties will renegotiate provisions of this section.
- 2. The school sessions shall be suspended on Saturdays, Sundays and the following named holidays and vacations: Columbus Day; Martin Luther King Day; Veterans Day; from Thanksgiving Day until the following Monday; from the first calendar day preceding Christmas to and including January 1; the week in which Washington's birthday falls; Good Friday; the week in which Patriot's Day falls; and Memorial Day. Whenever the aforesaid holidays falls on Sunday, the school shall not be in session on the following Monday.
- 3. The regular school day shall be established by the School Committee with the employees to arrive at their assigned area at 7:40 a.m. to remain until 2:55 p.m. Monday, Tuesday and Thursday; Wednesday until 3:15 P.M. and Teachers are to be on duty in Friday until 2:30 P.M. After student dismissal on their classrooms at 7:40 a.m. Wednesday and from 2:40 P.M. until 3:15 P.M., all teachers shall have dedicated time to be used for common planning time (CPT) to work on developing curriculum programs, reviewing student work, and analyzing data. CPT will be implemented as follows: CPT will involve two (2) periods per week for academic teachers, which includes the Wednesday afternoon period for all teachers. Professional

Development will be provided on how to run CPT, and the focus of CPT will be on curriculum and student work. Administrators may visit CPT meetings, but Administrators will not manage or run these meetings. CPT meetings will be led by teachers. The agenda for each CPT meeting will be approved and developed by the teachers involved. parties understand that on a rare occasion, the agenda for a CPT meeting may be supplanted by a mandate from the US Department of Education or the MA Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE). The Administration will solicit feedback on CPT from teachers on an ongoing basis consistent with current practice, and starting in the 2014-2015 school year teachers may be required to document and submit evidence from CPT to be used as part of their Educator Evaluation. Teachers shall be required to document curriculum development and other work done during CPT on Wednesdays after 2:40 P.M., using the Educator Collection of Evidence Form in Appendix G (or the equivalent in the TeachPoint System). It is understood that up to eight of the extended Wednesdays may be used for staff meetings. Teachers will be given reasonable and flexible time to allow for grading of assessments implemented as District Determined Measures (DDMs). Teachers may be dismissed earlier than 3:15 p.m. under emergency conditions at the discretion of the Superintendent/ Director or his/her designee. The School Committee shall try to keep students' dismissal at 2:30 p.m. Teachers shall be dismissed thirty (30) minutes following first dismissal of students on early dismissal days which are reflected in the official school calendar.

4. Any employee required to work beyond the normal school year will be paid their regular daily rate.

ARTICLE 18 NOTICES AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

- 1. All official circulars shall be posted on the school intranet for the inspection of teachers and shall be made available to teachers on request.
- 2. Each teacher shall have a copy of rules and regulations of the School Committee when such document is published.

- 3. A Directory of Personnel in the school shall be made available to all personnel.
- 4. Information on accumulated sick leave for each teacher shall be maintained and printed on the itemized payroll deduction statement sent to each teacher with their biweekly paycheck. The information should be transmitted to all teachers via e-mail.
- 5. A copy of school programs should be accessible to the entire faculty via intranet and on the GLTS website.
- 6. All in-house postings shall be posted for ten (10) days.

ARTICLE 19 TEACHER PROGRAMS

The Principal will try to provide teachers with their teaching schedule ten (10) days before the start of school.

ARTICLE 20 CONFERENCES

With prior approval of the Principal teachers may attend professional conferences or conventions.

ARTICLE 21 VISITING OTHER SCHOOLS

Teachers may be allowed to observe in another classroom on "visiting days" subject to prior approval of the Principal.

ARTICLE 22 CURRICULUM STANDARDS

The Principal will receive and consider suggestions on course content from the faculty.

ARTICLE 23 TEACHING SCHEDULES

The Principal will try to balance teaching schedules. Effective with the 2017-2018 school year, the Principal shall try to maintain a schedule of six (6) periods per school day with one (1) preparation period for teachers in the STEAM Program. The Committee and the Federation may, by mutual agreement, agree to re-open this contract for the limited purpose of negotiating over the adoption of a new 6-period schedule District-wide (as proposed by the Instructional Leadership Team) which aligns with current the Teaching Load including preparation periods, and provides preparations periods for instructors in the Career and Technical programs to be implemented with the start of the 2018-2019 school year.

ARTICLE 24 PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

In the spirit of continued cooperation, teachers will attend two (2) evening meetings each school year and one (1) Sunday afternoon Open House not to exceed three (3) hours. Any teacher who attends more than three (3) meetings shall be compensated at their applicable hourly rate of pay, and for all hours worked. The two evening meetings will consist of the following subject to approval of the teacher's supervisor, which absent circumstances beyond the control of the supervisor, shall be confirmed no later than September 15th:

Academic Teachers	Vocational Teachers	Guidance Counselors
Back to School Night	Back to School Night	Back to School Night
	Program Advisory Night	
And one (1) of the following:		And one (1) of the following
Freshman Exploratory Night		Freshman Exploratory Night
Program Advisory Night		Scholarship Night
Scholarship Awards Night		
	·	

ARTICLE 25 TEACHER EVALUATION

The Greater Lawrence Technical High School District Committee and the Greater Lawrence Regional Teachers Federation, Local 1707, AFT Massachusetts, AFT, AFL-CIO agree to adopt and implement an Educator Evaluation System consistent with M.G.L. c. 71, §38 and the Educator Evaluation Regulations, 603 CMR 35.00 et seg. incorporated herein by reference in Appendix F, Educator Evaluation System, Appendix G - Educator Evaluation System (Forms), Appendix H - ESE Model Rubric for Teachers, Appendix I - ESE Model Rubric for SISP, Appendix J - ESE Setting SMART Goals, and Appendix K - District Determined Measures. parties agree to utilize an Evaluation Oversight Committee, composed of an equal number of members with a minimum of four (4) from management and the Federation, to review the evaluation process annually, and to recommend adjustments and changes to the Educator Evaluation System, subject to negotiation and ratification by the parties. The Superintendent-Director shall appoint the management committee members and the Federation President shall appoint the Federation committee members. The parties agree to reopen this agreement for the limited purpose of negotiating over adjustments to the Educator Evaluation System required by M.G.L. c. 71, §38, or the Educator Evaluation Regulations, 603 CMR 35.00 et seq., or to implement changes mutually agreed to by the parties which are necessary for efficient operation of the Educator Evaluation System.

ARTICLE 26 PERSONNEL PRACTICES

- 1. Any employee of the School District has the right to examine upon request any "personnel folder files, cards and records" concerning himself/herself and his/her work as set forth in Chapter 71, Section 42C of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
- 2. Before any derogatory material is put in a teacher's folder, a copy of such material shall be given to the teacher.
- 3. The teacher shall have the right to submit a response to the statement. The teacher's answer shall also be included in the file.

ARTICLE 27 TEACHING LOAD

- 1. The Principal will try to maintain a schedule of eight (8) periods per school day and five (5) day schedule week. The weekly schedule for academic and related teachers shall contain thirty (30) teaching periods, and ten (10) preparation periods. Further, the Principal shall try to schedule no more than six (6) teaching periods and no more than three (3) preparations in any one day for academic and related instructors.
- 2. The Principal shall try to maintain class size in conformity with state requirements.
- 3. Local 1707 recognizes the importance of common preparation time ("CPT") to the success of the school and hereby pledges to work with the administration and School Committee to implement CPT within the present schedule structure. CPT is intended: (1) to use data to drive instruction to ensure a standards based curriculum; (2) to provide a common language to talk about learning; (3) to give groups of teachers the opportunity to look at student work together and adapt instruction based on how well students do on assignments and assessments.
- CPT will be implemented as follows: CPT will involve one 4. (1) period per week for academic teachers, and one 35minute block on Wednesdays from 2:40 P.M. to 3:15 P.M. for The focus of CPT will be the development of all faculty. curriculum, review of student work, and the analysis of Administrators may visit CPT meetings, but will not Meetings will be teacher led, and Administrators run CPT. will not manage or run these meetings. Starting in the 2014-2015 school year the Administration will solicit feedback on CPT from teachers on an ongoing basis consistent with current practice, and evidence documented and gathered by a teacher from CPT may be used as part of their Educator Evaluation.
- 5. The School agrees to strike any negative language from faculty evaluations pertaining to C.P.T. The parties recognize that the administration has inadvertently used CPT to evaluate some teachers during the 2012-2013 school year and both parties agree that this situation shall be rectified as follows by adding the following language: "The

administration and the union agree to make every effort to identify any/all teachers who's Formative Assessment/Evaluation or Summative Evaluation, completed during the 2012-2013 school year contain evidence gathered/documented from observations of CPT. evaluation process, including but not limited to announced and unannounced observations, which contain a reference to CPT or to work performed as part of CPT shall be permanently modified by the administration to reflect: 'This evidence/observation shall not be used for evaluative purposes, and no reference to this evidence/observation shall be used or considered when completing the Formative Assessment/Evaluation or the Summative Evaluation for this teacher.' The parties further agree that all evidence gathered /documented as part of the evaluation process which negatively impacts a teacher's Formative Assessment/Evaluation or Summative Evaluation ratings shall be removed from said assessment/evaluation and any/all affected ratings shall be adjusted accordingly."

- 6. Teachers will not be assigned additional work related to CPT outside of CPT periods.
- 7. The administration will solicit feedback from teachers regarding CPT on an ongoing basis.
- 8. Local 1707 recognizes the importance of maintaining and establishing sufficient teacher presence in the school's corridors during passing times and after school passing time and agrees that teachers will be outside their classroom doors during these times.

ARTICLE 28 LUNCH PERIOD

School employees covered by this agreement will be provided a thirty (30) minute duty free lunch period. It is further agreed that, subject to the prior approval of the Director of Career and Technical Programs, career area instructors who are supervising students on an off-campus job site and who, as a result of said duties of supervision, are unable to have a duty free lunch, shall be compensated for one-half hour at the teacher's rate. The instructor must apply for the Principal's approval 72 hours in advance. The Principal, in granting said approval, shall examine, among other criteria, the location of

the job site in relation to the school and the number of hours required to complete the job. The instructor shall make every reasonable effort to schedule his or her jobs in such a manner that the provisions of this paragraph will not have to be implemented. In any event, and notwithstanding the foregoing, the coordinator, before granting approval, must assure himself or herself that the foregoing compensation will be charged to the person or entity who has retained the services of the School's instructors and students.

ARTICLE 29 CAREER AREA INSTRUCTORS' BREAK

It is hereby agreed that a career area instructor may, subject to the following, leave his or her career area for reasonable and brief periods of time for personal or professional reasons. Before leaving, the instructor must insure that another instructor can safely supervise the career area in his or her absence and that the quality of instruction, discipline or safety will not suffer as a result of his or her absence. Should there be an abuse of this discretion by a career area instructor then the Director of Career and Technical Programs, in his or her sole judgment, may forbid a given instructor to leave a shop during shop periods.

ARTICLE 30 SUMMER SCHOOL AND EVENING SCHOOL

- 1. Positions in the summer and evening school will be filled first by qualified, regularly appointed teachers of the Greater Lawrence Regional Technical High School. The Principal will make seniority a consideration in formulating her recommendation for the filling of said positions to the Superintendent/Director. The parties having agreed that in-house candidates have first priority, further agree that if no qualified or regularly appointed teacher applies for a given position, the Principal may fill the position from outside the school.
- 2. The Union agrees that by May 1 teachers will submit a list of students who may potentially fail their courses. Based on this list and based on prior experience, the Superintendent/Director shall, prior to May 15, post a

tentative list of summer school positions. Tentative appointments to these positions will be made by June 1. Final appointment shall be conditional on the number of enrolled students.

ARTICLE 31 SENIORITY/PROGRAM REDUCTION

- Effective September 1, 2016, no teacher with professional 1. status shall be displaced by a more senior teacher unless the more senior teacher is currently certified pursuant to M.G.L. c. 71, s. 38G and is at least as qualified for the position as the junior teacher holding the position. criteria for determining a qualified teacher under this provision shall include, as the primary factors, indicators of job performance, including overall ratings resulting from the comprehensive evaluation conducted pursuant to the Greater Lawrence Regional Technical High School Educator Evaluation System (Appendix F) and the best interests of the students in the school or District. For the purposes of this Article an overall rating of "proficient" or higher shall be considered equivalent. Where qualifications are determined to be equal, seniority shall be the determining factor.
- 2. Seniority will be defined as total years of uninterrupted service at the Greater Lawrence Regional Technical High School. The time of service will be based upon the date that the teacher assumes full time teaching duties.
- 3. Teachers transferred from one department to another will maintain seniority rights in their previously assigned department. Example: A duly appointed teacher teaches for ten (10) years in the Metal Fabrication Department. The teacher transfers to the Machine Shop Department where he teaches for ten (10) years. In the case of a reduction in Machine Shop personnel, the teacher can return to Metal Fabrication applying an accumulated seniority of twenty (20) years in Metal Fabrication.
- 4. In the event of a reduction of teachers within a department (or the discontinuance of a department) teachers will be terminated in the inverse order of their department seniority in that department; that is, the last teacher

- hired for that department or assigned through a transfer to that department shall be first teacher terminated.
- 5. Should the terminated teacher have maintained seniority rights under Paragraph 2 above in another school department, the terminated teacher shall be eligible to return to the former department and replace teachers within that department having less seniority provided that the teacher is qualified to do so through certification status and previous teaching in that department.
- 6. Teachers displaced under Paragraph 4 above will be eligible to replace other teachers if the displaced teacher qualifies under Paragraph 2 above and is qualified to do so through certification/licensure status and previous teaching in that department.
- 7. Teachers that are displaced and do not have seniority rights under Paragraph 3, 4, 5, and 6 above will be terminated.
- 8. The STEAM Program shall be considered a department within the Greater Lawrence Technical Regional High School.

ARTICLE 32 PEER MENTORING

A formal mentoring program will be offered in accordance with the requirements of the Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education.

ARTICLE 33 SICK LEAVE AND REDEMPTION OF SICK LEAVE

- 1. Employees covered by this Agreement shall be allowed thirteen (13) days per year as sick leave with pay which will be cumulative to 260 days.
- 2. Teachers must use Aesop for sick, personal and bereavement leave absences, whether or not a substitute is required.
 All requests for School Business Leave must receive prior, written approval from administration.

- 3. ANY employee who has accumulated 155 sick days, may annually at the close of school elect to redeem fifteen (15) sick days at the rate of \$75.00 per day provided that such employee has not used more than five (5) sick days during the current school year. A minimum of 140 days accumulated sick leave must remain on record following redemption.
- 4. Applications of redemption of sick leave must be made within five (5) working days following the official close of school in June.

ARTICLE 34 PERSONAL LEAVE

- 1. An employee will be granted three (3) days of personal leave in any school year with pay to attend to personal business that cannot be conducted outside of school hours.
- 2. Personal leave shall be cumulative and be considered sick leave if not taken during school year.
- 3. Employees are required to give reasonable prior notice to the Principal before taking personal leave. The requirements of reasonable prior notices shall not apply to emergency situations.
- 4. The prior approval of the Principal or her designee will be required only on those occasions when personal leave is requested for the last school day prior to school vacations or for the first school day immediately after school vacations or M.C.A.S. days, unless said request is necessary for emergency reasons, in which case said prior approval will not be required.
- 5. Employees shall be presented with a written reason or reasons if they are denied personal leave on the abovementioned days. In no event, however, shall a personal day be used to start a vacation period early or to extend a vacation period.

ARTICLE 35 ABSENCE DUE TO DEATH IN IMMEDIATE FAMILY

- 1. An employee shall be granted absence because of a death in the immediate family with pay for a period not to exceed (4) days. In determining reasonable absence, consideration shall be given to the relationship of the employee to the deceased and the responsibility of the employee for making funeral arrangements. An employee's immediate family shall be considered as husband, wife, son, daughter, mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister, brother, grandparent, grandchild or any relative residing with the employee or any person for whom the employee is solely responsible for all funeral arrangements.
- 2. An employee shall be granted reasonable absence up to two (2) days for the death of a grandparent-in-law, sister-in-law or brother-in-law.

ARTICLE 36 DEATH OF RETIRED FACULTY MEMBERS

The School will provide time and classroom coverage for one teacher to attend the funerals of retirees in order to represent the faculty.

ARTICLE 37 MILITARY LEAVE

Military Leave of Absence without pay may be granted to a permanent teacher inducted into the armed forces for the required length of service, according to the terms of the Selective Service and Training Act of 1940 and subsequent amendments by Congress.

ARTICLE 38 ORGANIZED RESERVE FORCES

1. Every person who is a member of a reserve component of the Armed Forces of the United States shall be granted such leave without loss of pay in accordance with Section 59 of

- Chapter 33 of the General laws after furnishing official evidence that he has been ordered to duty.
- 2. It is agreed, however, that in the interest of minimizing the interruption of class instruction, the employee, the Union and Superintendent/Director will exhaust every effort to attempt to schedule the Reserve Training during July and August where possible.

ARTICLE 39 SABBATICAL LEAVES OF ABSENCE

The School District Committee may grant to employees who have completed seven (7) years of permanent service and complete formal application, a Sabbatical Leave of Absence to be used for study and professional improvement. Such leaves of absence shall be for a period not exceeding one (1) year. District Committee, at its discretion, may grant such leave with full or partial pay provided, that prior to the granting of such leave, said employee shall enter into a written agreement with the School District Committee that upon termination of such leave he will return to service in the School District for a period equal to twice the length of such leave that, in default of completing such service, he will refund to the School District Committee an amount equal to such proportion of salary received by him while on leave, as the amount of service not actually agreed bears to the whole amount of service agree to be rendered.

ARTICLE 40 MATERNITY LEAVES OF ABSENCE

- 1. An employee has the option of using current or accumulated sick leave to the extent available while she is on maternity leave.
- 2. Absence in excess of available sick leave time will be treated as leave without pay.
- 3. Such maternity leave shall be granted upon reasonable notice to the Superintendent/Director to become effective at the employee's discretion and to terminate not more than one (1) year after the termination of pregnancy.

- 4. An employee on maternity leave shall notify the Superintendent/Director of her intent to return at any time during the one (1) year period after termination of pregnancy.
- 5. If an employee fails to return from maternity leave by the expiration of the one (1) year period, her employment shall be terminated.
- 6. An employee returning from maternity leave will be reinstated to her previous position or to another comparable position.
- 7. An employee returning from a maternity leave will retain all her previous rights. Salary placement will be at the next step of the salary schedule if the employee served one-half (1/2) or more of the work year in which the leave was granted.

ARTICLE 41 FEDERATION LEAVE

An employee who is an officer of the Federation or who is appointed to a Federation position shall, upon proper application in May of the previous year be given a Leave of Absence for up to one (1) year without pay for the purpose of performing Federation duties. Such leave may be extended by the District Committee but in no case shall the total leave exceed two (2) years.

ARTICLE 42 SICK LEAVE BUY BACK PLAN

1. Effective July 1, 2017 all full time employees covered by this Agreement who have completed fifteen (15) years of service with the Greater Lawrence Regional Technical High School, shall be eligible to participate in a Sick Leave Buy Back Plan. An employee who has accumulated more than 210 days of Sick Leave as of July 1, 1999 shall be entitled to apply all of his/her accumulated days of Sick Leave to the Sick Leave Buy Back Plan, however the amount paid to an employee under the said plan will be limited to the number of days of accumulated Sick Leave as of July 1, 1999 or 210

days (whichever is greater). Upon retirement, an employee shall be eligible to receive payment for 33 1/3% of his/her accumulated Sick Leave, based upon the employee's base salary at his/her date of retirement. Effective July 1, 1999, payment for each day of accumulated Sick Leave shall be computed at 1/181 of a teacher's salary, and effective July 1, 2000, said payment shall be computed at 1/183 of a teacher's salary.

- 2. Eligible employees who desire to participate in the Sick Leave Buy Back Plan shall notify the Superintendent/Director of their intention to retire, in writing, by December 15th of the calendar year prior to the school year in which they intend to retire. If such notice is received by December 15th, then in the month of June at the conclusion of the employee's final year of employment all accumulated Sick Leave shall be eliminated, and in lieu thereof the employee shall receive a lump sum payment as provided in paragraph one (1) above.
- 3. It is understood that the giving of a notice of intent to retire pursuant to this provision is irrevocable, and that an employee giving such notice shall be required to retire at the conclusion of the next school year following the school year in which the notice of intent to retire is given, except where significant changes in the employee's family or personal life require the employee to continue his/her employment with the Greater Lawrence Regional Technical High School, subject to the approval of the Superintendent/Director.
- 4. In case of the death of an employee payment pursuant to paragraph 1 above made to the estate of the employee upon presentation of legal notification to the District Committee.
- 5. Nothing contained in this Article is intended to change the provisions of Article 33 hereunder which allows an employee to accumulate 260 days for Sick Leave purposes.

ARTICLE 43 SICK BANK

1. Effective October, 1983, a Sick Bank was established. The joining of the Bank is voluntary and each teacher will be required to contribute one (1) sick day. New teachers may join the Bank after 6 months employment within a period of

10 days. A teacher is not allowed to use the Bank until he or she has exhausted all of their accumulated sick days. In the event that the Bank drops below 100 days, each teacher is required to donate an additional sick day. The Sick Bank is to be administered by a committee consisting of the Superintendent-Director and Human Resources Director and two Local 1707 Union members.

- 2. If a teacher is refused the use of the Bank by the Sick Bank Committee, he or she has the right to appeal to a panel of three doctors, one selected by the School Committee, one by the Union and a physician to be mutually agreed to by the School Committee and the Union. The maximum amount of Bank Sick Days for use is 180 days.
- 3. By October 15th of each school year Local 1707 will provide to the Superintendent-Director a detailed accounting of the sick leave bank balance including days used and accumulated.

ARTICLE 44 APPLICATION FOR PROMOTION

When vacancies occur in higher positions or in more desirable positions or when new positions of comparable status are to be established, notice of such circumstance shall be posted on the appropriate school bulletin board with as much pertinent information (qualifications, requirements, duties, salary, etc.) as is available. All positions in addition to regular teaching positions for which there is remuneration shall be posted.

ARTICLE 45 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- 1. To provide for the expeditious and mutually satisfactory settlement of questions arising with respect to wages and other conditions of employment or out of this interpretation or application of any terms of this Agreement, the procedures hereinafter set forth shall be followed:
 - Step 1: An aggrieved teacher shall first discuss the complaint with his Academy Supervisor directly with the

objective of resolving the matter informally. The Academy Supervisor shall convey his decision to the teacher within forty-eight (48) hours after receiving the complaint.

Step 2: The teacher or Union may then initiate a grievance either orally or in writing to the Principal within thirty (30) school days after knowledge by the teacher or Union giving rise to the act or condition which is the basis for the complaint. The Union Representative and/or the aggrieved shall meet with the Principal at a time mutually convenient to discuss the grievance. Within the ten (10) days after discussing the grievance the Principal will either orally or in writing communicate his or her answer to the Union Representative and/or the aggrieved.

Step 3: If the grievance is not resolved in Step 2, the Union may appeal within ten (10) school days in writing to the Superintendent/Director. The Union Representative and/or aggrieved shall meet with the Superintendent/Director at a time mutually convenient to discuss the grievance. Within ten (10) days after discussing the grievance the Superintendent will either orally or in writing communicate her or his answer to the Union Representative and/or the aggrieved.

Step 4: If the grievance is not resolved in Step 3, the Union may appeal within ten (10) school days in writing to the full School District Committee. The School District Committee shall meet with the Union Representative, National Union Representative and the aggrieved at a time mutually convenient to discuss the grievance. The School District Committee within ten (10) school days following the discussion will forward their answer in writing to the Union Representative.

Step 5: A grievance dispute which was not resolved at the level of the School Committee, under the grievance procedure may be submitted by the Federation to arbitration. The proceeding may be initiated by written notice to the School Committee and the American Arbitration Association postmarked within thirty (30) school days after receipt of the decision of the School Committee at Step 4.

2. The Arbitrator shall issue his/her decision not later than 30 days from the date of the close of the hearings or, if oral hearings have been waived, then from the date of transmitting the final statements and proofs to the Arbitrator. The decision shall be in writing and shall set

forth the Arbitrator's opinion and conclusion on the issue submitted. The decision of the Arbitrator if made in accordance with his/her jurisdiction and authority under this Agreement, will be accepted as final by the parties to the dispute and both will abide by it. The Arbitrator's fee will be shared equally by the parties to the dispute.

- 3. Where it is evident that the time intervals set forth for answering or appealing a grievance cannot be met, they may be extended as mutually agreed upon.
- 4. Should the Union fail to process a grievance through a next higher step, the grievance shall be considered closed.
- 5. An employee may review his own "Personnel Record" and upon his specific request such" Personnel Record" may be reviewed by the Union Representative.
- 6. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall deprive any individual employee of the right to discuss with the Superintendent/Director or School Committee matters in his own interest.

ARTICLE 46 PAYROLL DEDUCTION OF UNION DUES

- 1. An employee who wishes to have the School District Committee deduct the regularly monthly Union dues from his/her pay for transmittal to the Union shall execute an authorization card (Application for Membership) to be furnished by the Union in the form attached, (See appendix C).
- 2. The amount of dues will be certified to the School District Committee from time to time by the Treasurer of the American Federation of Teachers or by his duly authorized agent and the amount of dues will be uniform for all members of the Union. A certification of a change in Union dues shall become effective after the receipt by the School District Committee of such certification in writing from the Union at least fifteen (15) days prior to the start of the month in which the Union seeks to make such change effective.
- 3. Union dues deducted by the School District Committee shall be forwarded no later than thirty (30) days after such

deduction was made.

- 4. An authorization by an employee for deduction of Union dues shall be canceled automatically whenever such employee is removed from the School District payroll or goes on leave of absence for more than one month and there shall be no obligation on the part of the School District Committee to continue authorization in effect in the absence of an applicable collective bargaining agreement.
- 5. Authorization for deduction of Union dues may be revocable as provided by law.

ARTICLE 47 DISTRIBUTION OF MATERIALS

The Union shall have the right to place material in the mail boxes of teachers and other professional employees.

ARTICLE 48 SCHOOL MEETINGS

The authorized representative of the Union shall have the right to schedule Union meetings in the building before or after regular class hours and during lunch time of the employees as long as no cost is involved.

ARTICLE 49 INFORMATION

The School District Committee shall make available to the Union upon its reasonable request any and all available information, statistics and records relevant to negotiations, or necessary for the proper enforcement of the terms of this Agreement.

GRIEVANCE TIME FOR UNION BUILDING REPRESENTATIVE

The Principal will allow the Union Building Representative reasonable time for meetings to discuss problems or grievances with the Superintendent/Director provided he has obtained a prior appointment.

ARTICLE 51 JOB DESCRIPTIONS

The Superintendent/Director will furnish upon request job descriptions of administrators and an organizational chart on a current basis. Nothing in this section precludes the District School Committee from changing job descriptions or school organization status during the life of the Agreement.

ARTICLE 52 TEACHER CONDUCT

All employees represented under the terms of this Agreement will be disciplined pursuant to the provisions of the Education Reform Act of 1993.

ARTICLE 53 UNAUTHORIZED INTERRUPTIONS OF SCHOOL OPERATIONS

There shall be no strike, work stoppage or other interferences or interruptions of school operation, including absences from assigned school duties to attend Union meetings during the period of this Agreement. No officer or representative of the Union shall authorize, instigate or condone any such activity. By way of penalty for any violation of the foregoing the Principal or Superintendent/Director shall have the right to take disciplinary action against any employee participating in the violation.

ARTICLE 54 FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS

In the event any valid federal or state laws or any order or state executive or administrative office having the authority, or the final determination of any board or court of competent jurisdiction affects any provision of this Agreement, the provision or provisions so affected shall conform thereto. Except as so modified the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. Nothing contained in this article shall preclude the Union from obtaining an interpretation of the Law or Directive acted upon by the School District Committee from the pertinent law making body.

ARTICLE 55 PROCEDURE IN ASSAULT CASES

- The Superintendent/Director shall report all cases of assault suffered by teachers in connection with their employment to the School District Committee.
- 2. Whenever it is alleged that a teacher has assaulted a person or that a person has assaulted a teacher, the Superintendent/Director shall conduct an investigation of the incident and report to the School District Committee. The Superintendent/Director shall comply with any reasonable request from the teacher for relevant information in the Committee's possession not privileged under law concerning the person or persons involved.
- 3. The following procedure is intended to govern the reporting of an alleged assault on a student by a staff member and shall be placed in the Student Handbook:
- 4. Any student complaining of an alleged assault or of other behavior by a staff member should report the alleged incident to a Guidance Counselor. The Guidance Counselor shall in turn report the incident to the Supervisor of Admissions and Counseling, if available, or to another Administrator if the Supervisor is not available. The Supervisor or the Administrator will report the incident to the Principal. The Guidance Counselor, the Supervisor/Administrator and the Principal will first make every reasonable effort to stabilize the situation. Each person involved in the reporting chain will file a written

report on the incident as soon as it is practicable to do so. Each person involved will do their best to maintain and preserve the confidentiality and safety of the student as well as that of the staff member.

ARTICLE 56 NO UNION ACTIVITY ON SCHOOL TIME

The Union agrees that no teacher will engage in Union activities during the time he is assigned to teaching or other duties.

ARTICLE 57 DISCRIMINATION AND COERCION

Neither the School District Committee or its agents outside the bargaining unit nor the Union, its agents or members shall:

- 1. Discriminate against any employee because of his being or not being a member of the Union, or
- 2. Discriminate against any employee because of action taken by either party in processing grievances instituted in good faith under the provisions of this Agreement, or
- 3. Discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, sex, handicap, disability or national origin, or
- 4. Intimidate or coerce any employee into joining or continuing his membership in the Union.

ARTICLE 58 DAMAGE OR LOSS OF PROPERTY

- 1. Teachers covered by this Agreement shall not be held responsible for loss, damage, or destruction of school property or student property if such loss, damage or destruction is not the fault of the teacher.
- 2. Teachers shall report in writing any loss, damage, or destruction to the Superintendent/Director or his designee

immediately upon becoming aware of such loss, damage or destruction.

- 3. The Committee may reimburse teachers for loss, damage, or destruction, while on duty in the School, of personal property of a kind normally worn or brought into the School as long as the teacher was not negligent, and as long as the teacher files a report with the Andover Police Department, to the extent that such loss is not covered by insurance.
- 4. In order to comply with the terms of this paragraph, it is hereby agreed that teachers will register all equipment and tools brought onto school property with the Superintendent/Director or his designee.
- 5. For purposes of this Article the term "personal property" shall not include cash over one hundred fifty (\$150.00) dollars.
- 6. The terms "loss", "damage", or "destruction" shall not cover effects of normal wear, tear and use

ARTICLE 59 AGENCY FEE

As a condition of employment, members of the bargaining unit who are not members of the Greater Lawrence Regional Teachers Federation, Local 1707, American Federation of Teachers (AFT), AFT Massachusetts, AFL-CIO, shall complete an Application for Agency Service Fee (ASF), (See Appendix D), and shall pay to the Greater Lawrence Regional Teachers Federation an Agency Service Fee. Such ASF shall be a percentage of Union dues and will represent that portion of Union dues which is commensurate with the cost of collective bargaining and contract administration. This provision is subject to the rules and regulations of the Massachusetts Department of Labor Relations and applicable law.

ARTICLE 60 FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT

The School and Union agree to incorporate the provisions of the federal law. All bargaining unit members who have been continuously employed by G.L.T.S. for at least one year are

entitled to F.M.L.A. Employees requesting F.M.L.A. for personal illness are eligible to utilize accrued sick leave for up to 12 weeks in a calendar year. Employees requesting F.M.L.A. to care for a family member who is ill are able to use up to 4 weeks of accrued sick leave. Employees requesting F.M.L.A. to care for a spouse/newborn baby following the birth or adoption of a child are able to use up to 2 weeks of accrued sick leave.

ARTICLE 61 OUALIFICATIONS MEMORANDUM

- 1. The District and 1707 hereby acknowledge the complexities of appointing teachers in certain unusual specialties. The provisions of this Article are directed to addressing this problem while, at the same time, maintaining the recognition of the significance and integrity of the salary schedule.
- 2. Pursuant to the foregoing and notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the District agrees that when it appoints a teacher in the above described category it will place said teacher in an existing step and column within the salary schedule, said placement to be reflective, whenever possible, of the following criteria:
 - i. The teacher's teaching or vocational experience; and
 - ii The teacher's academic qualifications; and
 - iii. The difficulty in filling the position in the particular specialty; and
 - iv. A demonstrated inability to identify an alternative candidate with the same or similar experience and qualifications to fill said particular specialty at a lower rate of compensation; and
 - v. A demonstrated need for the importance of the position in fulfilling the educational responsibility of the School.
- 3. The District agrees that it will utilize the provisions of this Article only when reasonably necessary and will give 1707 reasonable notice of its intention to do so.

4. Notwithstanding anything contained in Article 4.5 to the contrary, when any member of 1707 is appointed pursuant to the provisions of this Article 61, then in that event, any member of 1707 who is within the same Department as the member appointed hereunder and who is on the vertical step that is not commensurate with his or her years of service with the District shall be placed on the vertical step that is commensurate with his or her years of service with the District.

ARTICLE 62 RECOGNITION MEMORANDUM

- 1. The District Committee shall also recognize coaches who are full-time employees of the District duly appointed by the Principal or Superintendent/Director and who are otherwise members of the Bargaining Unit.
- 2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, coaches who are not members of the Bargaining Unit and who are duly appointed by the Principal or Superintendent/Director will continue to be placed in appropriate salary steps as negotiated by the Bargaining Unit and the Committee." ARB 85-1983."

ARTICLE 63 PHYSICIAN'S STATEMENT MEMORANDUM

In case of an absence of five (5) or more consecutive days the Superintendent/Director may require that a teacher file a statement with the Superintendent/Director from a registered physician that he is treating the teacher.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AWARD MEMORANDUM

1. For purposes of this Article, service will be defined as total uninterrupted service at the School which commenced from the date that the teacher assumed full-time teaching duties at the School. A teacher must have commenced his or her duties prior to February 1 in order to get a full

year's credit for purposes of this Article.

2. Commencing July 1, 2010, Professional Service Awards shall be made on the following schedule in the following amounts:

	Teachers with 10-14 years experience:	\$575 for each contract year.
	Teachers with 15-19 years experience:	\$1,075 for each contract year.
	Teachers with 20-24 years experience:	\$1,500 for each contract year.
	Teachers with 25-29 years experience:	\$1,750 for each contract year.
1	Teachers with 30 plus years experience:	\$2,200 for each contract year.

3. The foregoing payments shall be made in the December following the applicable commencement date in September. Any teacher who gives written notice to the Superintendent by April 30 of his/her intention to retire at the end of that school year will receive in his/her last June paycheck whatever Professional Service Award he/she might be eligible for had he/she commenced school the following September.

ARTICLE 65 JURY DUTY/COURT APPEARANCES

- 1. Any member of the bargaining unit who is summonsed for jury duty, or is summonsed to serve as a witness in a court case, and must be absent from his duties as a result shall be paid the difference between the juror's fee or witness fee and his or her regular salary. Any such member shall report for his or her regular duties when he or she is excused as a juror or witness unless it is unreasonable to expect the member to do so.
- 2. Absence from work because of jury duty will not adversely affect the retention and/or accrual of any contract benefits.
- 3. The provisions of this article will not apply to a member who is either a Plaintiff or a Defendant in a court case and who misses his or her regular duties as a result of a court appearance.

ARTICLE 66 SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

- 1. The parties hereto agree that in no event shall any individual or group of individuals, regardless of bargaining unit placement, who may have been involved in the labor dispute of October 23, 1989 through October 17, 1989 be disciplined, discharged, demoted, reduced in rank or compensation or in any other way adversely affected because of said involvement.
- 2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Union agrees to pay the District the sum of \$20,000 in 5 equal installments of \$4,000 each commencing April 27, 1990 and to be made annually thereafter.
- 3. The parties agree that in academic year 1989-1990 all employees shall work a full year for a full year's salary (subject to budgetary reductions unrelated to the strike). Pending ratification by the Union, the parties further agree that they will each withdraw all present litigation filed with the State Labor Relations Commission and with the Superior Court and that there will be no further litigation with regard to said strike.
- 4. It is agreed that the members of the bargaining unit shall return to work at 7:40 AM. on Monday, October 30, 1989.

ARTICLE 67 COACHES SALARIES

See Appendix B.

ARTICLE 68 PRINTING

The cost of printing this Agreement shall be shared equally between the District School Committee and Local 1707, AFT.

ARTICLE 69 DURATION

This Agreement shall become effective as of July 1, 2017, and shall continue in force and effect until 11:59 p.m. on June 30, 2020. The parties agree to meet on or about January 2020 in regards to a successor agreement. Signed and sealed this $7^{\rm th}$ day of March, 2017.

The Federation and the Committee hereto duly execute this Agreement by the respective signatures of their authorized representatives this $7^{\rm th}$ day of March 2017.

GREATER LAWRENCE REGIONAL TEACHERS FEDERATION, LOCAL 1707 AFT, AFT MASSACHUSETTS, AFL-CIO GREATER LAWRENCE REGIONAL TECHNICAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT COMMITTEE

Romas R. Hatim Susan Zietnolui

Marily Litgerel

APPENDIX A TEACHERS/NURSES SALARIES

FY2018

FY 2018 July 1, 2017 (1.5%)	B/V/RN	B15/V30/RN+15	M/V 45 RN ASSOC	M15/V60 RN ASSOC+15	M30/V75 RN BS	M45/V90 RN BS+15	M6o/VB/RN M	M75/VB15 RN M+15
STEP 1	\$47,287	\$48,294	\$49,296	\$50,495	\$51,302	\$52,307	\$53,312	\$55,455
STEP 2	\$50,005	\$51,009	\$52,013	\$53,017	\$54,019	\$55,024	\$56,028	\$57,031
STEP 3	\$52,720	\$53,724	\$54,727	\$55,732	\$56,324	\$57,740	\$58,741	\$59,747
STEP 4	\$55,436	\$56,440	\$57,444	\$58,447	\$59,452	\$60,456	\$61,459	\$62,462
STEP 5	\$58,152	\$59,156	\$60,160	\$61,161	\$62,166	\$63,168	\$64,175	\$65,178
STEP 6	\$60,867	\$61,873	\$62,877	\$63,878	\$64,885	\$65,887	\$66,891	\$67,894
STEP 7	\$63,583	\$64,588	\$65,591	\$66,595	\$67,599	\$68,604	\$69,605	\$70,610
STEP 8	\$66,299	\$67,303	\$68,306	\$69,310	\$70,316	\$71,319	\$72,321	\$73,327
STEP 9	\$69,016	\$70,020	\$71,022	\$72,026	\$73,029	\$74,034	\$75,036	\$76,041
STEP 10	\$71,730	\$72,733	\$73,739	\$74,743	\$75,746	\$76,750	\$77,754	\$78,756
STEP 11	\$74,450	\$75,449	\$76,350	\$77,458	\$78,461	\$79,465	\$80,468	\$81,474
STEP 12	\$77,163	\$78,167	\$79,170	\$80,176	\$81,179	\$82,181	\$83,187	\$84,189
STEP 13	\$79,879	\$80,882	\$81,887	\$82,889	\$83,894	\$84,896	\$85,902	\$86,903
STEP 14	\$81,236	\$82,240	\$83,244	\$84,246	\$85,251	\$86,253	\$87,259	\$88,264
STEP 15	\$82,592	\$83,598	\$84,602	\$85,607	\$86,608	\$87,614	\$88,618	\$89,620

Notes:

- a. All members of the bargaining unit on Step 12 on June 30, 2017 advance to Step 13 on July 1, 2017.
- b. All members of the bargaining unit on Step 13A1 or 13A2 on June 30, 2017 advance to Step 14 on July 1, 2017.
- c. All members of the bargaining unit on Step 13B1, 13B2, or 13B3 on June 30, 2017 advance to Step 15 on July 1, 2017.

FY 2018 June 30, 2018 (0.5%)	B/V/RN	B15/V30/RN+15	M/V 45 RN ASSOC	M15/V60 RN ASSOC+15	M30/V75 RN BS	M45/V90 RN BS+15	M6o/VB/RN M	M75/VB15 RN M+15
STEP1	\$47,524	\$48,535	\$49,542	\$50,748	\$51,559	\$52,568	\$53,578	\$55,732
STEP 2	\$50,255	\$51,264	\$52,273	\$53,282	\$54,289	\$55,299	\$56,308	\$57,316
STEP3	\$52,983	\$53,993	\$55,000	\$56,011	\$56,605	\$58,029	\$59,035	\$60,046
STEP 4	\$55,713	\$56,722	\$57,731	\$58,739	\$59,749	\$60,759	\$61,767	\$62,774
STEP 5	\$58,443	\$59,452	\$60,461	\$61,467	\$62,477	\$63,484	\$64,496	\$65,504
STEP 6	\$61,172	\$62,182	\$63,191	\$64,198	\$65,209	\$66,216	\$67,225	\$68,233
STEP 7	\$63,900	\$64,911	\$65,919	\$66,928	\$67,937	\$68,947	\$69,953	\$70,963
STEP8	\$66,630	\$67,639	\$68,647	\$69,656	\$70,668	\$71,676	\$72,682	\$73,694
STEP9	\$69,361	\$70,370	\$71,377	\$72,386	\$73,394	\$74,404	\$75,411	\$76,421
STEP 10	\$72,089	\$73,097	\$74,108	\$75,117	\$76,125	\$77,134	\$78,143	\$79,150
STEP 11	\$74,822	\$75,827	\$76,732	\$77,846	\$78,854	\$79,863	\$80,871	\$81,881
STEP 12	\$77,548	\$78,557	\$79,565	\$80,577	\$81,585	\$82,591	\$83,603	\$84,610
STEP 13	\$80,278	\$81,286	\$82,296	\$83,303	\$84,313	\$85,320	\$86,331	\$87,337
STEP 14	\$81,643	\$82,652	\$83,661	\$84,668	\$85,678	\$86,685	\$87,696	\$88,705
STEP 15	\$83,005	\$84,016	\$85,025	\$86,035	\$87,041	\$88,052	\$89,061	\$90,068

APPENDIX A TEACHERS/NURSES SALARIES

FY2019

FY 2019 July 1, 2018 (1.5%)	B/V/RN	B15/V30/RN+15	M/V 45 RN ASSOC	M15/V60 RN ASSOC+15	M30/V75 RN BS	M45/V90 RN BS+15	M6o/VB/RN M	M75/VB15 RN M+15
STEP 1	\$48,237	\$49,263	\$50,285	\$51,509	\$52,332	\$53,357	\$54,382	\$56,568
STEP 2	\$51,009	\$52,033	\$53,057	\$54,081	\$55,103	\$56,128	\$57,153	\$58,176
STEP 3	\$53,778	\$54,802	\$55,825	\$56,851	\$57,454	\$58,899	\$59,920	\$60,946
STEP 4	\$56,549	\$57,573	\$58,597	\$59,620	\$60,646	\$61,670	\$62,693	\$63,716
STEP 5	\$59,320	\$60,344	\$61,368	\$62,389	\$63,414	\$64,436	\$65,464	\$66,487
STEP 6	\$62,089	\$63,115	\$64,139	\$65,161	\$66,187	\$67,209	\$68,233	\$69,256
STEP 7	\$64,859	\$65,884	\$66,907	\$67,932	\$68,956	\$69,981	\$71,002	\$72,027
STEP 8	\$67,630	\$68,654	\$69,677	\$70,701	\$71,728	\$72,751	\$73,773	\$74,799
STEP 9	\$70,402	\$71,426	\$72,448	\$73,472	\$74,495	\$75,520	\$76,542	\$77,568
STEP 10	\$73,170	\$74,193	\$75,220	\$76,244	\$77,267	\$78,291	\$79,315	\$80,337
STEP 11	\$75,944	\$76,964	\$77,883	\$79,013	\$80,037	\$81,061	\$82,084	\$83,109
STEP 12	\$78,712	\$79,736	\$80,759	\$81,785	\$82,808	\$83,830	\$84,857	\$85,879
STEP 13	\$81,482	\$82,505	\$83,531	\$84,553	\$85,578	\$86,600	\$87,626	\$88,647
STEP 14	\$83,489	\$84,521	\$85,552	\$86,582	\$87,615	\$88,645	\$89,679	\$90,711
STEP 15	\$84,882	\$85,916	\$86,948	\$87,981	\$89,009	\$90,043	\$91,075	\$92,105

Notes:

- a. On July 1, 2018 increase Step 14 an additional three-quarters of one percent (0.75%).
- b. On July 1, 2018 increase Step 15 an additional three-quarters of one percent (0.75%).

FY 2019 June 30, 2019 (0.5%)	B/V/RN	B15/V30/RN+15	M/V 45 RN ASSOC	M15/V60 RN ASSOC+15	M30/V75 RN BS	M45/V90 RN BS+15	M60/VB/RN M	M75/VB15 RN M+15
STEP 1	\$48,478	\$49,509	\$50,537	\$51,767	\$52,594	\$53,623	\$54,654	\$56,851
STEP 2	\$51,264	\$52,293	\$53,322	\$54,352	\$55,379	\$56,409	\$57,438	\$58,467
STEP 3	\$54,047	\$55,076	\$56,105	\$57,135	\$57,742	\$59,194	\$60,220	\$61,251
STEP4	\$56,832	\$57,861	\$58,890	\$59,919	\$60,949	\$61,978	\$63,006	\$64,035
STEP 5	\$59,616	\$60,646	\$61,675	\$62,701	\$63,731	\$64,758	\$65,791	\$66,819
STEP 6	\$62,400	\$63,430	\$64,460	\$65,487	\$66,518	\$67,545	\$68,575	\$69,603
STEP 7	\$65,183	\$66,214	\$67,242	\$68,271	\$69,301	\$70,331	\$71,357	\$72,387
STEP8	\$67,968	\$68,997	\$70,025	\$71,055	\$72,086	\$73,114	\$74,142	\$75,173
STEP 9	\$70,754	\$71,783	\$72,810	\$73,839	\$74,868	\$75,898	\$76,925	\$77,955
STEP 10	\$73,536	\$74,564	\$75,596	\$76,625	\$77,653	\$78,683	\$79,712	\$80,739
STEP 11	\$76,324	577,349	\$78,272	\$79,409	\$80,437	\$81,466	\$82,494	\$83,525
STEP 12	\$79,105	\$80,134	\$81,163	\$82,194	\$83,222	\$84,249	\$85,281	\$86,308
STEP 13	\$81,890	\$82,918	\$83,948	\$84,975	\$86,006	\$87,033	\$88,065	\$89,090
STEP 14	\$83,906	\$84,943	\$85,980	\$87,015	\$88,053	\$89,088	\$90,127	\$91,164
STEP 15	\$85,306	\$86,345	\$87,382	\$88,421	\$89,454	\$90,493	\$91,530	\$92,565

APPENDIX A TEACHERS/NURSES SALARIES

FY2020

FY 2020 July 1, 2019 (1.5%)	B/V/RN	B15/V30/RN+15	M/V 45 RN ASSOC	M15/V60 RN ASSOC+15	M30/V75 RN BS	M45/V90 RN BS+15	M6o/VB/RN M	M75/VB15 RN M+15
STEP 1	\$49,205	\$50,252	\$51,295	\$52,543	\$53,383	\$54,428	\$55,474	\$57,703
STEP 2	\$52,033	\$53,077	\$54,122	\$55,167	\$56,209	\$57,255	\$58,300	\$59,344
STEP 3	\$54,858	\$55,903	\$56,946	\$57,992	\$58,608	\$60,082	\$61,123	\$62,170
STEP4	\$57,684	\$58,729	\$59,774	\$60,817	\$61,863	\$62,908	\$63,952	\$64,995
STEP 5	\$60,511	\$61,555	\$62,600	\$63,641	\$64,687	\$65,730	\$66,778	\$67,822
STEP 6	\$63,336	\$64,382	\$65,426	\$66,469	\$67,516	\$68,558	\$69,603	\$70,647
STEP 7	\$66,161	\$67,207	\$68,251	\$69,295	\$70,340	\$71,386	\$72,427	\$73,473
STEP8	\$68,987	\$70,032	\$71,076	\$72,121	\$73,168	\$74,211	\$75,254	\$76,301
STEP 9	\$71,815	\$72,860	\$73,902	\$74,947	\$75,991	\$77,036	\$78,079	\$79,125
STEP 10	\$74,639	\$75,683	\$76,730	\$77,774	\$78,818	\$79,863	\$80,908	\$81,950
STEP 11	\$77,469	\$78,509	\$79,446	\$80,600	\$81,643	\$82,688	\$83,732	\$84,778
STEP 12	\$80,292	\$81,337	\$82,380	\$83,427	\$84,471	\$85,513	\$86,560	\$87,603
STEP 13	\$83,118	\$84,162	\$85,208	\$86,250	\$87,296	\$88,338	\$89,385	\$90,427
STEP 14	\$85,165	\$86,217	\$87,270	\$88,320	\$89,374	\$90,424	\$91,479	\$92,532
STEP 15	\$86,586	\$87,641	\$88,693	\$89,747	\$90,796	\$91,851	\$92,903	\$93,954

FY 2020 June 30, 2020 (0.5%)	B/V/RN	B15/V30/RN+15	M/V 45 RN ASSOC	M15/V60 RN ASSOC+15	M30/V75 RN BS	M45/V90 RN BS+15	M60/VB/RN M	M75/VB15 RN M+15
STEP 1	\$49,451	\$50,503	\$51,551	\$52,806	\$53,650	\$54,700	\$55,751	\$57,992
STEP 2	\$52,293	\$53,343	\$54,393	\$55,443	\$56,490	\$57,541	\$58,591	\$59,640
STEP 3	\$55,132	\$56,182	\$57,231	\$58,282	\$58,901	\$60,382	\$61,42 9	\$62,481
STEP 4	\$57,973	\$59.023	\$60,073	\$61,121	\$62,173	\$63,222	\$64,271	\$65,320
STEP 5	\$60,813	\$61,863	\$62,913	\$63,960	\$65,011	\$66,058	\$67,112	\$68,161
STEP 6	\$63,652	\$64,704	\$65,754	\$66,801	\$67,854	\$68,901	\$69,951	\$71,000
STEP 7	\$66,492	\$67,543	\$68,592	\$69,642	\$70,692	\$71,743	\$72,789	\$73,841
STEP 8	\$69,332	\$70,382	\$71,431	\$72,481	\$73,533	\$74,582	\$75,630	\$76,682
STEP 9	\$72,174	\$73,224	\$74,272	\$75,322	\$76,370	\$77,422	\$78,469	\$79,520
STEP 10	\$75,012	\$76,061	\$77,113	\$78,163	\$79,212	\$80,262	\$81,312	\$82,360
STEP 11	\$77,856	\$78,902	\$79,843	\$81,003	\$82,051	\$83,101	\$84,150	\$85,201
STEP 12	\$80,693	\$81,743	\$82,792	\$83,844	\$84,893	\$85,941	\$86,993	\$88,041
STEP 13	\$83,534	\$84,583	\$85,634	\$86,681	\$87,732	\$88,780	\$89,832	\$90,879
STEP 14	\$86,232	\$87.298	\$88,364	\$89,428	\$90,494	\$91,558	\$92,626	\$93,692
STEP 15	\$87,671	\$88,739	\$89,805	\$90,872	\$91,934	\$93,002	\$94,068	\$95,132

Notes:

- a. On June 30, 2020 increase Step 14 an additional three-quarters of one percent (0.75%).
- b. On June 30, 2020 increase Step 15 an additional three-quarters of one percent (0.75%).

APPENDIX B COACHES AND ADVISOR'S SALARIES

7/1/2016	POSITION	BASE	Α	В	С
TRAINER	Head Trainer	\$10,669	\$11,824	\$12,401	\$12,976
	Trainer - Assistant	\$4,472	\$ 4, 663	\$4,855	\$5,048
CLASS ADVISORS	9th	\$1,593	\$1,782	\$2,078	\$2,376
CLA33 AD VI3ON3	10th	\$1,632	\$1,930	\$2,226	\$2,524
AND	11th	\$1,782	\$2,078	\$2,376	\$2,674
	12th	\$2,969	\$3,267	\$3,563	\$3 , 861
ALLE ADVICABLE	National Honor Society	\$1,782	\$2,078	\$2,376	\$2,674
CLUB ADVISORS	Student Council	\$1,782 \$1,782	\$2,078	\$2,376	\$2,674
a qualita and a successive construction of the analysis of the construction of the con			\$2,070 \$3,861	\$4,158	\$4,454
11 (2000) 10 (1000) 10 (1000) 10 (1000) 10 (1000) 10 (1000) 10 (1000) 10 (1000) 10 (1000) 10 (1000) 10 (1000)	Year Book	\$3,563	\$2,078	\$4,136	\$2,674
мента на мента на примента	School Paper	\$1,782	\$2,078	\$1,779	\$1,872
	All Other Clubs	\$1,593	\$1,000	35//9	31,072
FALL CHEERLEADING	Varsity	\$4,089	\$4,458	\$4,649	\$4,840
	Junior Varsity	\$2,475	\$2,846	\$3,034	\$3,218
FALL SWIMMING	Head Coach	\$4,333	\$5,287	\$5,480	\$5,669
	Asst (1)	\$3,033	\$3,218	\$3,404	\$3,589
SOCCER	Head Coach	\$5,576	\$5,960	\$6,153	\$6,343
SUCCER ***********************************	Asst (1)	\$3,962	\$4,333	\$4,519	\$4,710
	Asst (2)	\$3,589	\$3,962	\$4,146	\$4,333
	Head Coach	ÅF F76	\$5,960	\$6 , 153	\$6,343
VOLLEYBALL		\$5,576		\$4,242	\$4,420
	Asst (1)	\$3,683	\$4,054	74,242	77,42
GOLF	Head Coach	\$3,777	\$4,146	\$4,333	\$4,519
CROSS COUNTRY	Head Coach	\$4,333	\$5,287	\$5,480	\$5,669
CRO33 COUNTY	Asst (1)	\$3,962	\$4,333	\$4,521	\$4,710
			40.700	÷0.001	\$10,09
FOOTBALL	Head Coach	\$9,324	\$9,708 \$5,576	\$9,901	\$6,15
	Asst (1)	\$5,383		\$5,770	\$5,779
######################################	Asst (2) Asst (3)	\$4,997 \$4,806	\$5,383 \$5,383	\$5,576 \$5,576	\$5,77
######################################		************	\$5,190	\$5,383	\$5,57
anggara samba sa ka ki ki ki ki anga gawa dan mba ki ki ki ki ki ki ki ki ka k	Asst (4) Asst (5)	\$4,426 \$4,333	\$4,806	\$4,997	\$5,190
	Asst (6)	\$4,333 \$4,196	\$4,806	\$4,997	\$5,190
	Asst (7)	\$3,962	\$4,333	\$4,519	\$4,710
	\ I	44.000		64.640	\$4,84
WINTER CHEERLEADING	Varsity	\$4,089	\$4,458	\$4,649	er eiger er er er er is befallen ver er er er
, (2000) 1000) 1 1000	Junior Varsity	\$2,475	\$2,848	\$3,033	\$3,218
				1	1
WRESTLING	Head Coach	\$5,190	\$5,576	\$5,769	\$5,96
(1847-1841) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Asst (1)	\$4,053	\$4,427	\$4,613	\$4,80
	Asst (2)	\$4,053	\$4,427	\$4,613	\$4,80

APPENDIX B COACHES AND ADVISOR'S SALARIES

7/1/2016	POSITION	BASE	A	В	C
WINTER SWIMMING	Head Coach	\$4,333	\$5,287	\$5,480	\$5,669
	Asst (1)	\$3,033	\$3,218	\$3,404	\$3,588
SKIING	Head Coach	\$2,942	\$3,126	\$3,313	\$3,498
GIRLS BASKETBALL	Head Coach	\$6,633	\$7,015	\$7,209	\$7,402
	Asst (1)	\$4,427	\$4,806	\$4,998	\$5,190
	Asst (2)	\$4,053	\$4,427	\$4,613	\$4,800
	Asst (3)	\$3,034	\$3,218	\$3,404	\$3,588
BOYS BASKETBALL	Head Coach	\$6,633	\$7,015	\$7,209	\$7,40
	Asst (1)	\$4,427	\$4,806	\$4,998	\$5,190
	Asst (2)	\$4,053	\$4,427	\$4,613	\$4,80
	Asst (3)	\$3,034	\$3,218	\$3,404	\$3,588
ICE HOCKEY	Head Coach	\$5,480	\$5,863	\$6,055	\$6,247
	Asst (1)	\$3,962	\$4,333	\$4,521	\$4,710
PHYSICAL CONDITIONING	Head Coach	\$2,104	\$2,290	\$2,476	\$2,660
INDOOR TRACK	Head Coach	\$4,333	\$5,287	\$5,480	\$5,669
	Asst (1)	\$3,962	\$3,962	\$3,962	\$3,962
	Asst (2)	\$3,962	\$3,962	\$3,962	\$3,96
TENNIS	Head Coach (Boys)	\$4,017	\$4,389	\$4,574	\$4,760
	Head Coach (Girls)	\$4,017	\$4,389	\$4,574	\$4,760
SOFTBALL	Head Coach	\$5,480	\$5,863	\$6,055	\$6,247
	Asst (1)	\$4,241	\$4,613	\$4,806	\$4,99
	Asst (2)	\$3,126	\$3,498	\$3,683	\$3,86
BASEBALL	Head Coach	\$5,480	\$5,863	\$6,055	\$6,247
Drucus de la company de la com	Asst (1)	\$4,241	\$4,613	\$4,806	\$4,99
	Asst (2)	\$3,869	\$4,241	\$4,427	\$4,61
OUTDOOR TRACK	Head Coach	\$5,383	\$5,769	\$5,960	\$6,152
COLDOOK HACK	Asst (1)	\$3,962	\$4,333	\$4,521	\$4,710
THE PROPERTY OF THE PROPERTY O	Asst (2)	\$3,962	\$4,333	\$4,521	\$4,710
	Asst (2)	\$3,777	\$4,146	\$4,333	\$4,52
MER PHYSICAL CONITIONING	Head Coach	\$2,977	\$2,570	\$2,754	\$2,942

APPENDIX C APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP

APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP

THE GREATER LAWRENCE REGIONAL TEACHERS FEDERATION
LOCAL 1707, AMERICAN FEDERATION OF TEACHERS (AFT), AFT MASSACHUSETTS, AFL-CIO
57 RIVER ROAD, ANDOVER, MA 01810

I hereby apply for membership in the Greater Lawrence Regional Teachers Federation, Local 1707, American Federation of Teachers (AFT), AFT Massachusetts, AFL-CIO, recognizing this organization as a constructive force in providing better educational opportunities for the Nation's children, and protecting the rights of which teachers are entitled in a democratic society.

Name of applican	t		
	(Print)	
Signature of appli	cant	Date	
Address			
City	State	Zip Code	
Home Phone	Home E-Ma	il	
Position	Program		
in equal installments. This 1707, American Federation of Teachers Federation may n	I hereby request and authorized amount shall be paid to the Treasure Teachers (AFT), AFT-Massachusetts, AF ot be deductible for federal income t	r of the Greater Lawrence Regional L-CIO. Union Dues paid to the Grea ax purposes; however, under limite	Teachers Federation, Local ater Lawrence Regional ed circumstances, dues may
qualify as a business expen	se. These deductions may be terminanter in termination of my employment.	ated at any time by me by written r	notice to both the Federation
Employe	ee's Signature	Date	

COPIES TO FEDERATION AND GLTS BUSINESS OFFICE

APPLICATION FOR AGENCY SERVICE FEE

APPLICATION FOR AGENCY SERVICE FEE

THE GREATER LAWRENCE REGIONAL TEACHERS FEDERATION
LOCAL 1707, AMERICAN FEDERATION OF TEACHERS (AFT), AFT MASSACHUSETTS, AFL-CIO
57 RIVER ROAD, ANDOVER, MA 01810

I do not wish to apply for membership in the Greater Lawrence Regional Teachers Federation, Local 1707, American Federation of Teachers (AFT), AFT Massachusetts, AFL-CIO, recognizing that I shall be required to pay, as a condition of employment, an Agency Service Fee (ASF).

Name of applicant		400
.,	(Print)	
Signature of applicant		Date
Address		
City	State	Zip Code
Home Phone	Home E-Mail	
Position	Program	
each pay period in equal installments. Th Federation, Local 1707, American Federatio Regional Teachers Federation may not be	is amount shall be paid to the on of Teachers (AFT), AFT-Massach e deductible for federal income These deductions may be term	to deduct Agency Service Fee (ASF) from my earnings Treasurer of the Greater Lawrence Regional Teachers nusetts, AFL-CIO. ASF paid to the Greater Lawrence e tax purposes; however, under limited circumstances inated at any time by me by written notice to both th t.
Employee's Signature		 Date

COPIES TO FEDERATION AND GLTS BUSINESS OFFICE

APPENDIX E LEAD TEACHER - JOB DESCRIPTION

DEFINITION:

Reporting directly to the Supervisors of Academy and/or appropriate Administrator, Lead Teachers coordinate departmental activities of their prescribed academic/vocational discipline. A Lead Teacher shall work 183 days per year, with up to three days as arranged by the School Principal and the employee, at the per-diem rate as needed.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:

The essential functions or duties listed below are intended only as illustration of the various types of work that may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.

- 1. Coordinate departmental activities and meetings.
- 2. Review and provide leadership for the department curriculum.
- 3. Provide input to support the scheduling process.
- 4. The Academy Supervisor/Administrator will work with the Lead Teacher to provide Substitute Teachers with materials necessary for instruction.
- 5. Open classrooms in the morning and secure areas at the end of the school day; identify security issues and assist in determining absent department teachers or staff and confirm coverage.
- 6. Oversee the daily condition of all department instructional areas.
- 7. Maintain accurate departmental records; coordinate the exchange of information within the Department and/or the Academy.
- 8. Update departmental inventories; assist the Academy Supervisor/Administrator in the ordering of departmental supplies and equipment.
- 9. Work with the Academy Supervisor in implementing updated industry standards, if applicable.
- 10. Any other duties as required by the School Principal.

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE:

Master's Degree from an accredited college or university is preferred. A minimum of five years teaching experience is required, with at least three years of experience teaching at Greater Lawrence Technical School is preferred; appropriate Massachusetts Teacher Certification from the Department of Education.

KNOWLEDGE, ABILITY AND SKILL:

Working knowledge of Microsoft Office suite and accessing information on the internet. Excellent organizational, oral and written communication skills are a must; ability to share information and resources appropriately. Ability to work effectively with advisory boards; must possess a high-level of interpersonal skills as a means to deal with difficult situations; general pleasant demeanor and respectful attitude towards employees at all levels of the school. Must be a self-starter and have the ability to work with minimal supervision and direction; ability to work cooperatively with others to achieve common district goals.

APPENDIX E LEAD TEACHER - JOB DESCRIPTION

WORK ENVIRONMENT:

The work environment characteristics described here are representative to those an employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS: Minimal to light physical effort is generally required in performing duties in an office environment. This position may require the ability to operate a computer keyboard and standard office equipment at efficient speed and for lengthy periods of time. This position requires occasional evening meetings as requested.

Job description updated June 5, 2009.